
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
June 11, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 28, 2013 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – Proposed 

Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, Currently Zoned IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
6. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404) – Proposed 

United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
7. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407) – Proposed 

1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 Rochester), Section 23, 
Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
8. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406) – Proposed 

McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, South of Big Beaver (36895 Dequindre), 
Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 408) – Proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone, West side of John R, South of Big 
Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and 
Business) District 

  

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



TROY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA June 11, 2013 
 
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11: 00 p.m.Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 
 

2 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on May 28, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson Robert Schultz 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-040 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-041 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 14, 2013 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Krent gave a report on the May 21, 2013 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on the May 15, 2013 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the June 11, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
agenda. 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Belleclaire Estates Site 

Condominium, 9 units/lots, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of 
Lamb, Section 14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the application and recommended Preliminary Site Plan approval 
conditioned on the applicant satisfying two requirements as part of Final Site Plan 
approval, noted in his report dated May 23, 2013. 
 
Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering were 
present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment.  There was no one present who wished 
to speak. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-042 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Belleclaire Estates Site 
Condominium, 9 units/lots, east of Rochester, north of Wattles, south side of Lamb, 
Section 14, within the R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

1. Provide five (5) additional trees along Belleclaire Drive. 
2. Provide seed mix for detention facility. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Schultz 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober Living 

Facilities 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the status of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
He addressed the direction and intent of City Council’s decision to remand the matter 
back to the Planning Commission for further study. 
 
Mr. Carlisle identified the following proposed options for consideration to address 
potential impact on single family residential properties and neighborhoods: 
• Permit use only in multiple-family residential, integrated business and office-mixed 

use districts. 
• Limit the maximum permitted residents per facility to 20. 
• Increase minimum lot area per resident from 2,500 square feet to 4,000 square feet. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
• City Council questions/comments. 
• Map identifying potential properties. 
• Rationale/justification for proposed options. 
• Review of proposed options, affirmation by Legal Department. 
• Acknowledgement of growing need for facilities. 
• Management, operation, supervision of facilities. 
• Regulatory action by the State in the future. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Tom Telotte, operator of a sober living facility in another community, addressed 
concerns relating to limiting the number of residents per facility and increasing the 
minimum lot area per resident.  He addressed the management/operation of a facility. 
 
David Lord said the proposed options are excessively restrictive and the “numbers” have 
no rationale behind them.  He also addressed the management/operation of a facility.   
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to go forward with the proposed draft language as 
presented. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Carlisle said public hearing draft language would be prepared and public hearings 
would be scheduled for both the Planning Commission and City Council. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced Frank Boudon, the Board’s new Student Representative.   
 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 05 28 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



  PC 2013.06.11 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 4, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – 

Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
The petitioner Midwest Industrial Metals, Inc. submitted the above referenced Special Use 
Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a proposed materials recovery 
facility. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on March 12, 2013.  The Planning 
Commission postponed the item to May 14, 2013 to allow the applicant time to prepare and 
submit a property survey and plans for appropriate screening along the northern property line, 
as relates to treatment, specifications and material.  The applicant did not provide revised plans 
to the Planning Department in time to review prior to the meeting.  The Planning Commission 
postponed this matter to June 11, 2013.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 

 
 
Attachment: 

1. Maps 
2. Minutes from March 12, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
3. Minutes from May 14, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
4. Report from Housing and Zoning Inspector 
5. Site photographs 
6. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 401 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 401  Midwest Industrial Metals Inc  Sec 26\SU 401 PC Memo 06 11 2013.docx 
 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – 
Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, Currently 
Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be (granted, subject to 
the following conditions): 
 

1. East elevation doors to remain closed except for access purposes. 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 401  Midwest Industrial Metals Inc  Sec 26\Proposed Resolution 2013 06 11.doc 



Midwest Industrial Metals

Legend

1: 2,817

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2350469 469Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/29/2013



Midwest Industrial Metals

Legend

1: 1,652

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1380275 275Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/29/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MARCH 12, 2013 
   
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
4. a. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

(File Number SU 401) – Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 
Stephenson Highway, Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and 
Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle said the applicant is before the Board tonight for a Special Use 
Approval to operate an indoor materials recovery facility within an existing 
industrial building.  He noted the applicant recently became aware of the City’s 
requirement to obtain a Special Use Approval to operate such a facility in the light 
industrial district.  Mr. Carlisle reviewed the site plan application and 
recommended approval conditioned on the applicant (1) to confirm there would be 
no outdoor storage or bins located in the rear of the site and (2) to work with City 
staff and resubmit screening details along the northern and southern property 
lines to meet Zoning Ordinance requirements prior to Final Site Plan approval. 
 
Robert Stefani, Esq., was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Stefani stated 
that since learning a Special Use Approval was required for outdoor storage, the 
facility has been in compliance now for several months.  He said all work has 
been moved indoors, there is no dumping or sorting of material on site, and there 
is no storage outside.  He indicated two dumpsters have been placed on site for 
general trash.  Mr. Stefani circulated photographs of the site to show recent 
improvements and maintenance of the property.  He said the photographs were 
taken today, March 12.  Mr. Stefani said it appears the existing fence to the north 
sits directly on the property line and ownership at this time is undetermined.  He 
assured the Board they would work with City staff to address the required opaque 
screening going forward with Final Site Plan approval.  Mr. Stefani said the 
facility’s business hours are 8 am to 5 pm. 
 
The petitioner, Mark Hewines, said overhead doors are closed during business 
hours, but at times an overhead door might be open for ventilation purposes 
during summer months.  Mr. Hewines said it is possible for an entire vehicle 
(truck) to fit into the building for unloading. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
James Hammond of 1224 Sylvia, Troy, addressed the noise decibel level and 
facility upkeep. 
 
Peggy Hammond of 1224 Sylvia, Troy, addressed the loud noise level. 
 
Ola Roberts of 2127 Shelley, Troy, said she received an eye injury from flying 
debris and that Midwest Metals is not respectful of the residential surrounding. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MARCH 12, 2013 
   
 
 
 

Mike Damman of A. J. Damman Company, property owner of 1200 Piedmont, 
circulated photographs of the subject site, stating the photographs were taken 
today, March 12.  He claims the fence along the applicant’s northern property line 
is owned by A. J. Damman Company.  Mr. Damman disputed claims by the 
applicant that the facility’s work has moved indoors, that there is no outdoor 
storage, and that a truck can fit within the building for unloading.  He said the 
only solution to screening is to provide a poured concrete 9 foot wall on grade to 
match the existing wall. 
 
Lynn Irwin of 2200 Stephenson Highway, Troy, business owner in the area, said 
the applicant is not a friendly, workable neighbor.  She addressed truck traffic in 
the shared alley and along Stephenson Highway.  Ms. Irwin claims the mess and 
debris on site is not cleaned up by the applicant, and the overhead doors are 
always open and noisy. 
 
Marvin Reinhardt of 1281 Dorre, Troy, said the applicant did not keep their grass 
mowed last summer, and he got several flat tires from the fine grain left on the 
ground.  He also addressed the City cutbacks in code enforcement. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the treatment of screening required by the Zoning 
Ordinance.  He said the Planning Department takes all applications by face value 
and holds the applicant responsible for what is stated and proposed in the 
application.  He indicated some of the comments expressed at tonight’s public 
hearing appear to be code enforcement issues. 
 
Mr. Stefani addressed the following: 
• Noise level; currently no outstanding code violations; other light industrial 

facilities in the area. 
• Claims applicant owns two-thirds of ‘shared’ alley. 
• Agrees to work with City on appropriate screening treatment. 
• All unloading/sorting done at Pontiac facility. 
• Facility works with non-ferrous metal only; no chipping machinery on site. 
• Plans to asphalt gravel road with appropriate aggregate base. 
 
There was discussion on contradictory photographs and comments relating to 
maintenance of property and fence ownership. 
 
Ms. Lancaster shared information displayed on Equalizer with respect to code 
enforcement site inspections and reports.  She briefly reviewed the history of the 
pending court case. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MARCH 12, 2013 
   
 
 

Mr. Savidant noted the company has made big strides in site improvements within 
the last three months.  He said all activity has moved inside and two dumpsters 
have been placed on site.  Mr. Savidant said the noise level was documented well 
below the allowable decibels.  He informed the Board a site plan is a contract, and 
the site plan and special use request are the items before the Board tonight for 
approval.   
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-016 
Moved by: Schepke 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the May 14, 2013 Regular meeting to allow 
the applicant time to prepare and submit a property survey and plans for 
appropriate screening along the northern property line, as relates to treatment, 
specifications and material. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Code Enforcement department prepare a 
report as relates to compliance with Zoning Ordinance requirements; i.e., 
outstanding code violations, noise level, site maintenance, outdoor storage. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MAY 14, 2013 
   
 
 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – 

Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Savident advised the Board that revised plans were received but not in time for 
review by the Planning Consultant and staff.  It is recommended to postpone the item to 
the June 11, 2013 Regular meeting.  Mr. Savident noted for the record the public 
comment received on this item was provided to the Board. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-036 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
currently zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) district, be postponed to June 
11, 2013.  Such postponement shall provide the applicant time to prepare and submit a 
property survey and plans for appropriate screening along the northern property line. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Savidant said anyone interested in seeing the revised plans can contact the 
Planning Department. 

 



From: Gary L Bowers
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: RE: Midwest Metals
Date: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 7:52:52 AM
Attachments: 9 8 2010 001.jpg

9 8 2010 002.jpg
9 8 2010 003.jpg
9 8 2010 004.jpg

Good morning Brent,
Site inspection completed on June 3, 2013 reveled “No Violation.” The property is maintained. No
outdoor storage existed as well as no materials handled or processed at the exterior elevation of
the building at the time of my inspection. The East end of the parking lot has been graded in
preparation for parking lot re-surfacing, although this has not yet occurred. Attached are
photographs of conditions yesterday (June 3, 2013) as well as conditions on August 24, 2012 when
the original “Code Enforcement” began.
 

Gary Bowers
Housing and Zoning Inspector
248.524.3355 Office
248.885.1833 Cell
 
 
 

From: Brent Savidant 
Sent: Monday, June 03, 2013 11:03 AM
To: Gary L Bowers
Subject: Midwest Metals
 
Gary:
 
Please visit this site today if possible.  Document your visit with photos.
 
If you have time could you put together a brief report outlining improvements to site since last PC
meeting on March 12, 2013 (File Number SU 401, can be found at  G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 401 
Midwest Industrial Metals Inc  Sec 26)
 
Thanks.
 
Brent

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BOWERSGL
mailto:SavidantB@troymi.gov






 
 
 
The following three ( 3) photos were 
taken August 24, 2012 
 
Note: Date setting on camera is 
incorrect. 
 









 
 
 
The following seven (7) photos were 
taken June 4, 2013 
 
Note: Date setting on camera is correct. 
 

















 
 
 

 Date:  March 6, 2013 
May 30, 2013 

 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Ark-Tec LLC 
 
Project Name: Materials Recovery Facility 
 
Plan Date: November 16, 2012 
 
Location: 2222 Stephenson Highway – Between Sylvia Drive and Piedmont 

Drive 
 
Zoning: IB, Integrated Business District 
 
Action Requested: Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a special land use application which includes a site plan demonstrating existing site 
conditions related to the addition of an indoor materials recovery facility within an existing industrial 
building.   
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize a portion of the existing industrial building to house a material 
recovery facility as part of their business operations.  The site is located at 2222 Stephenson Highway.  
The site is zoned IB, Integrated Business District.  Material recovery facilities are listed as a special use in 
the IB district. 
 
 



Material Recovery Facility 
May 30, 2013 

2 

 
Figure 1. – Aerial Photograph 
 

 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the east side of Stephenson Highway between Sylvia Drive and Piedmonte 
Drive. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is approximately 1.928 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to modify the southeastern portion of the existing industrial building for 
material resource operations. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently maintains an approximate 25,900 s.f. industrial building. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned IB, Integrated Business District. 
  
 



Material Recovery Facility 
May 30, 2013 

3 

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels and Current Land Use:  
 
Direction Zoning Use 
North  IB, Integrated Business District Industrial / Warehousing 
South IB, Integrated Business District Industrial / Warehousing  
East MH, Manufactured Housing Troy Mobile Home Villa 
West GB, General Business Commercial  
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission first considered this matter at their March 12, 2013 meeting.  Please review 
our March 6, 2013 memo for a complete site plan review.   
 
At that meeting the Planning Commission heard testimony from adjacent property owners, specifically 
regarding concerns of:  

• Excessive noise, especially in the summer when overhead doors are open 
• A lack of site and facility upkeep including untidy site, liter, and debris 
• A lack of necessary screening to adjacent properties 

 
At the March 12th meeting, the application was continued so that the applicant was able to address the 
following items:  
 
1. Provide a Property Survey 
 
The applicant has provided a property survey.   
 
2. Noise 
 
Adjacent neighbors have complained about excessive noise.  Noise nuisances will be reduced by moving 
all site operations internal to the building.  However, it was noted that during the summer months the 
doors along the east elevation are open.  In order to ensure all operations are done internally and noise 
impact upon adjacent properties is mitigated, all east elevation doors shall remain closed except for 
access purposes.   
 
3. Provide sufficient screening along northern property line 
 
The applicant is proposing to maintain the existing 9-foot high concrete wall along the east property 
line, which is directly adjacent to the Troy Mobile Home Villa.   The applicant proposes to install a 
privacy screen on the existing 6-foot high fences along the northern and southern property line.   
According to the submitted fence screen cut sheet, the screen provides 88% blockage.   
 
Because this is a special use the Planning Commission may require additional screening, installation of a 
masonry wall, or an increase to the fence height (maximum of 8’) if it is determined that there is an 
additional need to protect public health, safety, and welfare. 
 
 



Material Recovery Facility 
May 30, 2013 

4 

4. Code Enforcement Division provide a report in regards to zoning ordinance violations 
 
As requested, Gary Bowers from the Code Enforcement Division provides the following:  
 

Site inspection completed on June 3, 2013 reveled “No Violation.” The property is maintained. 
No outdoor storage existed as well as no materials handled or processed at the exterior 
elevation of the building at the time of my inspection. The East end of the parking lot has been 
graded in preparation for parking lot re-surfacing, although this has not yet occurred. Attached 
are photographs of conditions yesterday (June 3, 2013) as well as conditions on August 24, 2012 
when the original “Code Enforcement” began. 

 
The photos indicate the site has been significantly cleaned up since enforcement started in August, 
2013.  A code action report and photos are included in the packet.   
 
STANDARDS  
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.17 provides specific use requirements for material recovery facilities.   
 
1. All recyclable materials shall at all times be stored within a completely enclosed building.  

 
The site plan provided demonstrates that the area devoted to materials recovery will be located in a 
completely enclosed building.   

 
2. The proposed use must be of such location, size, and character that it will be in harmony with the 

appropriate and orderly development of the surrounding area. 
 
The proposed use is located in an industrial area. The completely enclosed use should not impact the 
adjacent properties. As noted, the applicant shall confirm that the site provides adequate screening to 
adjacent properties.    
 
3. Access and circulation shall be sufficient.  
 
Provided that there is no outdoor storage access and circulation is sufficient.   
 
4. Designed to eliminate any possible nuisance including dust, noise, fumes, vibration, smoke, or 

lights, or the presence of toxic materials. 
 
The proposed use should not provide additional nuisances than normally anticipated for a similar use in 
the area.   
 
5. The following activities shall be prohibited, except as noted: 

a.  Incineration or open burning in any building or on the site. 
b. Overnight storage of any refuse material, other than recyclable materials, in any 

building. 
c. Dumping or storage of material on the site outside the buildings at any time 



Material Recovery Facility 
May 30, 2013 

5 

 
The applicant is not proposing any of the aforementioned prohibited activities.   
 

6. All recyclable materials temporarily stored outside the buildings must be in transport vehicles 
or transportable containers. 

 
The applicant indicates no outdoor storage.  
 
Standards of Approval 
 
In the IB District, materials recovery facilities are permitted as a special use. For any special use, 
according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary 
materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a 
Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on 
the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed material recovery area will be confined within an existing industrial building located in an 
established industrial area. 
 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in 

accordance with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-
area and corridor plans.  

 
The Master Plan designates the subject site and the surrounding area as 21st Century Industrial.  The 21st 
Century Industrial future land use classification encourages a variety of industrial uses; specifically, light 
industrial uses with no outdoor storage or external nuisances are especially encouraged.  The proposed 
enclosed material recovery facility is compatible with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master 
Plan. 
 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking 
design; street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access 
points. Efforts shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and 
effectively accommodated in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular 
traffic congestion.  

 
The conversion of a limited portion of the building to material recycling shall not impact site traffic. 
 



Material Recovery Facility 
May 30, 2013 

6 

4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 
facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
There should not be any additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond 
what would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  
 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. 

 
The site complies with all zoning ordinance standards.   
 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 

operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use.  
 
With the removal of outdoor storage, the proposed use is permissible. 
 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 
No change to parking areas is proposed.  Additional consideration is needed with regard to truck 
circulation at the southeast corner of the property. 
 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 
The special requirements (Section 6.17) related to material recovery facilities have been met.   
 
4. Hours of operation.  
 
The addition of the indoor material recovery area will not impact the existing businesses current hours 
of operation. 
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light.  
 
We do not anticipate any additional impact in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: None.  
 
 
 
 
 



Material Recovery Facility 
May 30, 2013 

7 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Through adequate screening and elimination of outdoor storage for this site, we find that the proposed 
improvements to the site for a material recovery facility will clean up the site and reduce impacts upon 
surrounding properties.   We recommend that the Planning Commission approve the preliminary site 
plan and Special Use provided a condition of approval is that all east elevation doors remain closed 
except for access purposes.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
225-02-1307 







  PC 2013.06.11 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 3, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404) – 
Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 
Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) 
District 

 
 
The petitioner United Ventures II, LLC submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval 
and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a proposed contractor’s yard within a paved 
parking lot.   
 
Contractor’s yards are permitted in the IB district subject to Special Use Approval (Section 6.08).  
Further, provisions for contractor’s yards require that “Outdoor storage shall be accessory to the 
contractor’s principal office use of the property”.  The applicant intends to store vehicles on the 
property without constructing a building.  The Planning Commission considered this item on 
March 26, 2013 and did not take action.  On April 16, 2013, the Zoning Board of Appeals 
granted a variance from this requirement.  The Planning Commission considered this item on 
May 14, 2013 and postponed the item until June 11, 2013.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Minutes from March 26, 2013 Planning Commission meeting 
3. Minutes from April 16, 2013 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting 
4. Minutes from May 14, 2013 Planning Commission meeting 
5. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 404 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 404  United Ventures II LLC  Sec 26\PC Memo 06 11 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404) – 
Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be postponed 
to [    a date certain   ].  Such postponement shall provide the applicant time to resubmit a 
site plan, and other associated plans, which reduce the proposed number of vehicles to be 
stored on site.   
 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 404  United Ventures II LLC  Sec 26\Proposed Resolution 2013 06 11.doc 



1861 BIRCHWOOD, UNITED VENTURES

Legend

1: 1,168

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

970195 195Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/22/2013



1861 BIRCHWOOD, UNITED VENTURES

Legend

1: 1,168

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

970195 195Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/22/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING  MARCH 26, 2013 
   
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
(File Number SU 404) – Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North 
of Maple (1861 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial 
and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle informed the Board the applicant seeks to store vehicles on the 
property without constructing a building.  The applicant is going before the Zoning 
Board of Appeals on April 16, 2013 to seek a variance from the Zoning Ordinance 
requirement that a building must be constructed on the site.  Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that action on the Special Use and Site Plan application be 
postponed pending a determination on the variance request.  He asked the 
Assistant City Attorney how the Public Hearing should be handled. 
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested postponing the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the following outstanding site plan issues: 
• Employee and street parking. 
• Circulation with respect to trailers on site. 
• Requirement for 8 foot fence; plan shows 6 feet. 
• Construction of permanent building to facilitate office and employee facilities. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the issue in this matter is whether the variance being sought is 
a use or non-use variance. 
 
Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering was present to represent the petitioner.  
Mr. Robinson said the applicant is amicable to working with the City on all 
outstanding site plan concerns.  He said there would be ample parking because 
out-of-state employees, housed in Troy, would be transported to/from the site in a 
van.  Mr. Robinson said the 30-35 foot trailers would not be disconnected, nor 
create a circulation problem because the site is 65 feet wide.  Mr. Robinson said 
company headquarters based in Washington Township would utilize cellular 
communications with its employees, thereby eliminating a need for a physical 
building on site.  He said the required 8 foot fence would screen portable 
restroom(s), should such be permitted by the City. 
 
Mr. Robinson said the proposed plan would be an overall improvement to the 
existing site.  He said with Special Use approval granted back in 1982, the site 
currently houses approximately 20 vehicles with no appropriate screening. 
 
There was no action taken. 
 
The Public Hearing is postponed. 
 

 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   FINAL APRIL 16, 2013 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. Variance Request, John Wernis, United Ventures II LLC, Vacant 
property on Birchwood between 1825 and 1871 Birchwood, Tax Parcel 
Identification Number 20-26-478-033 – In order to operate a contractor’s 
yard/outdoor storage facility, a variance from the requirement that a building must 
be on the site. 
 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Bloomingdale 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the request. 
 
Yes: Bloomingdale, Clark, Kaltsounis, Krent 
No: Courtney, Lambert 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MAY 14, 2013 
   
 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 404) – Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple 
(1861 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the history and proposed use of the site.  He addressed concerns 
relating to the operation, logistics and circulation of the site as well as parking and 
landscaping.  He stated that based on the findings of the City’s Traffic Engineer and the 
Traffic Consultant, it is recommended that the applicant resubmit plans that would 
reduce the proposed number of vehicles to be stored on site. 
 
The petitioner, John Wernis, and project engineer, Nathan Robinson of Horizon 
Engineering, were present.  They asked the Board’s consideration for approval this 
evening and addressed the following: 

• Number of stored vehicles on site. 
• Employee parking. 
• Synchronized, organized work structure. 
• Existing facilities currently in operation on smaller sites. 
• Landscaping requirements. 
• Subject site currently in operation with six vehicles. 
• Improvements on subject site. 

 
The Board discussed: 

• Temporary approval with review at a specified date. 
• Approval conditioned on no off-street parking. 

 
Ms. Bluhm advised the Board that their focus should be on the property itself and its 
proposed use.  She stated that the proposal should be self-contained and advised 
against placing a condition on approval relating to off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Carlisle advised the petitioner that he is obligated to comply with the Zoning 
Ordinance regulations relating to landscaping. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MAY 14, 2013 
   
 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-05-037 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed United Ventures II LLC, west of John R, north of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, currently zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) district, be 
postponed to June 11, 2013.  Such postponement shall provide the applicant time to 
resubmit a site plan, and other associated plans, which reduce the proposed number of 
vehicles to be stored on site.  Reducing the number of vehicles will reduce the number 
of employee off-street parking spaces and provide better site circulation. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Revised:  May 7, 2013 

June 5, 2013 
 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: United Ventures II, LLC 
 
Project Name: United Ventures 
 
Plan Date: February 18, 2013 
 
Location: 1861 Birchwood  
 
Zoning: IB, Integrated Industrial and Business District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting approval to establish a contractor’s/outdoor storage yard on a site located 
on Birchwood Street north of Maple and east of I-75.  The site is located in the IB, Integrated Industrial 
and Business District, and is 15,600 square feet in size and 60 feet in width.  There are no minimum lot 
area or lot width requirements in the IB District.  On their submitted site plan the applicant has indicated 
the designated areas of truck and trailer parking and designated areas of employee parking.   In addition 
the applicant has submitted maneuvering plans and a description of site circulation and operations.      
 
The site received a special use in 1982 to allow for a contractors yard with a maximum of six (6) vehicles.   
The maximum number of vehicles was set at six (6) based on testimony from then Planning Director, 
Larry Keisling.   
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Location of Subject Property: 
 
The property is located on the north side of Birchwood Drive, east side of Belingham Drive 
 

 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The approximate size of the subject property is 15,500 s.f.  
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Contractors Yard 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Contractors Yard based on existing Special Use which limits total number of vehicles at 6.   
 
Current Zoning: 

Subject Site 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

The property is currently zoned IB, General Business.  
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  IB, Integrated Business Industrial / Warehousing 
South IB, Integrated Business Industrial / Warehousing 
East IB, Integrated Business Industrial / Warehousing 
West IB, Integrated Business Industrial / Warehousing 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission first considered this matter at their May 14, 2013 meeting.  Please review our 
May 7, 2013 memo for a complete site plan review.  At that meeting the applicant submitted a plan 
showing eleven (11) landscape vehicles and seventeen (17) employee parking spaces.   
 
The City’s Traffic Engineer and the Traffic Consultant found that due to the number of proposed 
landscape vehicles and the maneuvering diagram, safe site circulation is compromised and it is likely 
that due to site congestion, operations for this site will extend onto Birchwood Drive.  At the March 12th 
meeting, the application was continued so the applicant could resubmit a site plan, and other associated 
plans, which reduce the proposed number of vehicles to be stored on site. 
 
RESUBMITAL 
 
Site Plan:  
 
The applicant has provided a revised site plan that shows reduction of the truck/trailer parking to eight 
(8) landscape truck spaces, and eighteen (18) employee spaces.  Please note that only sixteen (16) 
employee spaces would be required.   
 
Parking: 
 
A contractors yard is not a listed use in the parking table.  Since there is not a building onsite parking 
must be determined based on number of employees at maximum shift.   One (1) space per number of 
employees at maximum shift is used to determine parking requirement for uses where the number of 
employees is the determining factor.   Based on conversations with the applicant, two (2) employees per 
truck is a reasonable expectation.   
 
The applicant has submitted plans which indicate that based on eight (8) contractors trucks, eighteen 
(18) off-street employee parking spaces will be provided.   The applicant has noted that the site is over 
parked by two (2) spaces and will reduce the parking to sixteen (16) employee spaces.   
 
REVIEW 
 
The revised site plan has been reviewed by the City’s Traffic Engineering consultant, Steve Dearing of 
OHM.  Mr. Dearing notes:  
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

I believe that there are still substantial issues with this plan.  The number of trucks with 
trailers have been reduced from 11 to 8.  However, they are still showing unchanged an 
employee personal vehicle count of 18. 
 
To most clearly illustrate why this plan still has problems, refer to the old maneuvering plans, 
specifically Stage 9.  It depicts the 8th truck returning for the end of the day, and how fully 11 
out of the 18 personal vehicles would have to be removed from the lot to allow the truck to 
maneuver into its spot.  I believe that all my previous comments about the operational 
complexity of sequencing staff in and out still holds true.  You should continue to expect 
significant staging to occur on Birchwood as a daily event, both in the morning and end of 
the work day.  Again the key is that to start or end the day, they must stage vehicles out on 
Birchwood to get the other vehicles in and out.  The numbers should be balanced so all 
employee vehicles can be on site and still be able to have any or all of the work trucks 
maneuver in and out. 

 
I continue to believe that the site is only marginally suitable for parking the employee 
vehicles or storing the work trucks, but certainly not both.  

 
We noted to Mr. Dearing that the site plan could be reduced by two (2) employee parking spaces.  
According to Mr. Dearing even with eight (8) landscape vehicles and sixteen (16) employee spaces it is 
likely that due to site congestion, operations for this site will extend onto Birchwood Drive.  Such activity 
on Birchwood would impact street circulation and adjacent building operations.  Based on the findings 
of the City’s Traffic Consultant, we recommend that the applicant resubmit a site plan which reduces the 
proposed number of vehicles to be stored on site.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Resubmit a site plan which reduces the proposed number of vehicles to be stored 
on site.   
 
SPECIAL USE  
 
In the IB District, an Outdoor Storage Yard is a special use.  For any special use, according to Section 
9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary materials either in support 
or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for 
that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on the request, or grant the request 
subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Use Standards – Section 6.08, Contractor’s Yard/Outdoor Storage Facilities 
 
1. The contractor’s office building shall be of permanent construction. 
 
Since the applicant received a variance this standard is not applicable.    
 
2. Outdoor storage shall be accessory to the contractor’s principal office use of the property. Such 

outdoor storage shall not be located within the front yard and shall be enclosed by an opaque fence 
up to eight (8) feet in height and/or landscape screening meeting the standards set forth in Section 
13.02.B. 

 
The applicant received a variance from this requirement.  The applicant has provided a fence with 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

slats.     
 
3. All travel surfaces shall be paved as a condition of approval. 
 
The site is paved.  
 
4. Cranes, booms or other extensions on equipment, trucks or other vehicles parked on site shall be 

stored in the lowest possible configuration. 
 
The applicant is not proposing to store equipment other than landscape trucks.  
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 

1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 
harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed use is industrial in nature.   If the proposed use was able to be contained on this site, 
such use would have minimal impact upon adjacent properties and the proposed use fits with the 
existing industrial nature of the surrounding area.  However, based on the number of vehicles 
proposed and maneuvering diagram submitted by the applicant it is likely that due to site congestion, 
operations for this site will extend onto Birchwood Drive.  Such activity on Birchwood would impact 
street circulation and adjacent building operations. 
   

2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in 
accordance with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-
area and corridor plans.  

 
An industrial use of the property is consistent with the Master Plan.  
 

3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 
minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle 
trip generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and 
parking design; street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and 
access points. Efforts shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and 
effectively accommodated in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate 
vehicular traffic congestion.  

  
As noted, due to significant site circulation and operation issues, the proposed use at this site could 
have significant traffic impacts on Birchwood Drive.  
 

4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential 
public facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

protection, drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such 
services shall be provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
The proposed use could cause additional impact on other public services, most specifically police 
having to monitor on-street parking and congestion issues on Birchwood Drive.   
 

5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 
constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards.  

 
The site is deficient in zoning ordinance standards including circulation and landscaping.    
 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 

1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 
operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use.  

 
See above.  Provided site planning issues are addressed the proposed use may be permissible in the 
proposed location. 
 

2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 
Vehicular circulation and parking areas are insufficient. 
    

3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 
The operations are screened according to code requirements. 
 

4. Hours of operation.  
 
Noise ordinance limits work hours between 7 am – 8 pm and that includes starting of work trucks.  
 

5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light.  
 
Due to site congestion, operations for this site will extend onto Birchwood Drive.  Such activity on 
Birchwood would impact street circulation and adjacent building operations.   
 
Items to be addressed: Address Ordinance compliance issues noted herein. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based on the findings of the City’s Traffic Consultant, we recommend that the applicant resubmit a site 
plan, and other associated plans, which reduce the proposed number of vehicles to be stored on site.   
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

Sincerely,  

      
#225-02-1312 
 
Cc:   
 











  PC 2013.06.11 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 5, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407) – 

Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
 
The petitioner Guido Architects, Inc. submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval and 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a 118,160 square foot mini-storage facility.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item at the May 14, 2013 Regular 
meeting (minutes attached).  The Planning Commission postponed the item to the June 11, 
2013 Regular meeting. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from May 14, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
4. Public Comment 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 407 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 407  800 Mini Storage  Sec 23\SU 407 PC Memo 06 11 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407) – 
Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 Rochester), 
Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District, be (granted, 
subject to the following conditions): 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 407  800 Mini Storage  Sec 23\Proposed Resolution SU 407 2013 06 11.doc 



1-800 Mini Storage, 3846 Rochester

1: 1,982

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1650330 330Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

3/26/2013



1-800 Mini Storage, 3846 Rochester

1: 1,982

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1650330 330Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

3/26/2013



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date: May 7, 2013 

Revised: June 4, 2013 
 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Rochester Road Ventures, LLC 
 
Project Name: 1-800-Mini Storage 
 
Plan Date: May 14, 2013 – (listed on Sheet T-1); Date stamped on May 2, 

2013 
 
Location: 3846 Rochester Road – between E. Wattles and E. Big Beaver   
 
Zoning: GB, General Business 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We received a site plan for the development of a 5-story, 112,120 square foot self-storage facility at 
3846 Rochester Road.  The proposed building would house 775 self-storage units.  The first floor 
includes a two-lane, one-way vehicular access through the building to accommodate loading and 
unloading of units.  The first floor maintains 79 storage units, while floors 2-5 employ 174 units each.  
Mini-warehouse or self-storage facilities are listed as a special use in the GB, General Business District.  
Site access will be via one (1) curb cut off Rochester Road.  The use does not include any outdoor 
storage or storage of moving or rental trucks.   
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Location of Subject Property: 
 
The property is located on the east side of Rochester Road between E. Wattles and E. Big Beaver Roads. 
 

 
 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The overall size of the subject property is 65,896 s.f. (1.51 acres) 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Self-storage 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant – formerly United Flooring America 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned GB, General Business.  
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  GB, General Business Creative Center Lab / Automotive Authority 
South GB, General Business All-State Construction 
East R-1C, Single-Family Residential Single-Family Residential 

Approximate site 
location 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

West GB, General Business Strip mall – various commercial uses  
 
 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Sections 4.14.C establish the dimensional requirements for the GB District.  The requirements and the 
proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
The front 38 feet of the building is an overhang to allow for vehicular circulation with 4 stories above.  
Though the minimum dimensional requirements of the GB district have been met, a standard for the 
Special Uses is the impact upon adjacent properties.  The 5-story, 69-feet tall building is located 73-feet 
from rear (east) property line.  We have included specific site planning considerations (lighting, 
landscaping, etc), to mitigate noise and light impact upon adjacent single-family residential properties.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission first considered this matter at their May 14, 2013 meeting.  Please review our 
May 7, 2013 memo for a complete site plan review.  At the May 14th meeting, the application was 
continued so that the applicant was able to address the following items:  
 
1. Revise Site Plan based on May 7th Memo 
 
As requested in the May 7th memo, the applicant has made the following changes to the Site Plan:  

 
• Preserved 10-foot rear yard landscape buffer (see screening section below for additional 

details). 
• Removed all building mounted lights on the east elevation.  The applicant proposes to light the 

rear of the site with two (2) 15-foot high poles, shining back into the property.  
• Removed all windows from east elevation.  

 

 Required: Provided: Compliance 
Front (Rochester) 10 feet  minimum setback 30 feet Complies 

Side (north) 20 feet  minimum setback 24 feet Complies 

Side (south) 20 feet  minimum setback 38 feet Complies 

Rear (east) 30 feet  minimum setback 73 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 5  stories, 75 feet 5 stories, 69 feet Complies 

Minimum Floor Area 500 square feet 112,120 square feet – total 
21,058 square feet – bldg. 

footprint 

Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

2. Screening to Adjacent Rear Properties 
 
The Planning Commission and the adjacent residential property owners expressed concerns regarding 
potential impact including noise, light, site lines, and shadowing on adjacent properties.  In response, 
the applicant has agreed to remove all glass and building mounted lights from the rear elevation.  In 
addition, they propose to maintain the 10-foot landscape buffer in the rear and preserve nine (9) 
existing mature Elm and Mulberry trees and plant twenty-three (23) Norway Spruce.  While Elm is not a 
preferred species, they are in fair condition and their 40+ foot height provide significant buffering.  The 
existing trees in combination with the proposed Norway Spruce provide a dense landscape buffer along 
the entirety of the rear property line. 
 

Tree List Along Rear Property Line 
Tree New / Preserved DBH / Height 
Mulberry Preserved 26” 
Mulberry Preserved 12”, 12” 
Elm Preserved 14” 
Elm Preserved 14” 
Elm Preserved 16” 
Elm Preserved 16” 
Elm Preserved 14” 
Elm Preserved 16” 
Elm Preserved 10” 
Norway Spruce (23) New 12-14 foot  planting height 

 
The applicant has also provided an angle study which shows that due to the 75-foot rear yard setback 
and the existing mature 40+ foot trees, the building will not be visible from the rear yards of the 
adjacent residential properties.   

 
3. Compatibility along Rochester Road 
 
As requested the applicant has provided a massing study showing the proposed development in relation 
to existing building patterns along Rochester.  The site is zoned General Business (GB).  Of the two 
business zoning districts, GB is the most intense commercial district.  All GB properties along Rochester 
Road and most GB zoned properties in the City are adjacent to single-family residential districts. The GB 
is intended to provide areas for more diversified retail and service uses, City-wide or regional market 
area, and/or arterial exposure. The GB Districts are typically located along major arterials and/or 
adjacent to Community Business Districts.  The GB District was created to allow for greater flexibility and 
increased development patterns along Rochester Road.  The proposed development meets all bulk, 
height, and setback requirements.  A by-right development such as an office, school, hotel, large-scale 
retail (big box), or shopping center would be permitted the same height and bulk allowances.   
 
While the proposed 5-story, 69-foot height building is larger and of a greater mass than surrounding 
properties, the Planning Commission must consider the intended future development patterns along 
Rochester Road.  A five-story development might increase redevelopment options of surrounding 
properties and is more consistent with the intended future development along Rochester Road.   
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

 
SPECIAL USE  
 
In the GB District, Mini-Warehouse and Self-Storage facilities are permitted as a special use. For any 
special use, according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, 
supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s 
report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table 
action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 

Use Standards – Section 6.24, Self-Storage Facilities 
 
1. Incidental accessory uses such as the sale of boxes, locks and other supplies, shall be permitted. 
 
The applicant has shown a retail portion of their development.  Retail sales in this space are limited to 
sales of boxes, locks, and other supplies and materials.   
 
2. The storage of any toxic, corrosive, flammable, or hazardous materials is prohibited. 
 
The applicant has noted that any toxic, corrosive, flammable, or hazardous materials are prohibited at 
the facility.  Any future finding of the storage of such materials is grounds to revoke a Special Use 
permit.   
 
3. Other than the storage of recreation vehicles, all storage and accessory uses shall be contained 

within a building.  All recreational vehicle storage shall be screened from the view of the 
residentially zoned or used property and public roads in accordance with the standards set forth in 
Section 13.02.B. 

 
No outdoor storage is demonstrated on the site plan. 
 
4. Exterior walls of all storage units shall be of masonry construction. 
 
The exterior walls of the building are made up of both masonry construction and metal siding. 
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed use is commercial in nature.  Provided that the applicant is able to address specific 
noted site planning recommendations, the proposed use fits with the existing commercial character of 
the property and surrounding area along Rochester Road.   
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 
with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans.  

 
The subject site is located in the Rochester Road future land use category.  This designation is 
intended specifically for the Rochester Road corridor from the northern City boundary to I-75, and 
focuses on access management and stormwater management techniques.  The applicant is providing 
sufficient access to the site and providing the required stormwater management underground.   
 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

  
Compared to similar sized uses, self-storage facilities are low traffic generators.  A self-storage use at 
this facility should have minimal impact on traffic.   
 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
The proposed use should not cause additional impact on other public services, such as police or 
utilities, beyond what would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  
 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards.  

 
Outside the aforementioned issues, the site complies with all other zoning ordinance standards.   
 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of operation; 

either specifically or typically associated with the use.  
 
See above.  Provided site planning issues are addressed the proposed use may be permissible in the 
proposed location. 
 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 
Vehicular circulation and parking areas is sufficient. 
    
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

N/A. 
 
4. Hours of operation.  
 
We assume due to the nature of the proposed use, this will be a 24-hour, 7 day per week use.  Hours 
of operation can be limited by the Planning Commission provided that they find limiting hours shall 
reasonably reduce impacts upon adjacent properties.   
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes, odors, dust, glare and light.  
 
Through setbacks, tree preservation, additional landscaping, architectural considerations and 
operational considerations the applicant has mitigated the potential impact of traffic, noise, smoke, 
fumes, odor, dust, glare, and light.  
 
Items to be addressed: None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The site is zoned General Business (GB).  The GB is intended to provide areas for more diversified retail 
and service uses, a City-wide or regional market area, and/or arterial exposure. The proposed 
development meets all bulk, height, and setback requirements of the GB district. We find that the 
applicant is able to mitigate potential impact of noise and light by providing additional screening, 
redirecting light sources, and monitoring site operations.   As such we recommend preliminary site plan 
approval.  
 
Sincerely,  

      
#225-02-130X 
 
Cc:  Rochester Road Ventures, LLC, 10651 Northend Avenue, Ferndale, MI 48220 
  Guido Architects, Inc., via: jguido@guidoarchitects.com 
   Mickalich Engineering, Inc., via: amickalich@gmail.com 
  Kemp Building + Development, via: tkemp@kemp-company.com 

mailto:jguido@guidoarchitects.com�
mailto:amickalich@gmail.com�


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 14, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 407) – Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of 
Wattles (3846 Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated the proposed use of a mini storage is a less intense use that could be 
permitted by right in the General Business zoning district.  He reported the proposed 
development meets all area, width, height and setback requirements.  Mr. Carlisle 
addressed the steps taken by the petitioner to mitigate the impact to adjacent residential 
parcels to the east.  He stated the petitioner has also offered to preserve the existing tree 
buffer and supplement it with additional evergreens.  Mr. Carlisle recommended 
postponing the item to allow time for the petitioner to resubmit an accurate site plan that 
shows the additional landscaping and revised maneuverability radius on the driveway. 
 
Mr. Savidant noted for the record the public comment, inclusive of a signed petition, 
received on this item was provided to the Board. 
 
The petitioner and project architect, Joseph Guido, was present.  Mr. Guido said they 
would comply with all the Planning Consultant’s suggestions.  He stated ownership of the 
proposed facility is the same owner of the existing storage facility located on Maple and 
Coolidge.  Mr. Guido said the nature of the business is less intense than office or 
restaurant, and estimates the facility would generate approximately 20 vehicular trips 
daily. 
 
There was discussion on: 

• Height of building; potential to eliminate stories and/or “stepping down”. 
• Shadow effect on residential. 
• Existing trees/landscaping to buffer residential. 
• Truck maneuverability. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following persons spoke in opposition, citing concerns relating to building height, 
not a good fit for neighborhood, traffic, shadow effect, noise and truck maneuverability. 
 

Robert Flaig 1219 Judy 
Kim Flaig 1219 Judy 
Krishna Chellemella 3787 Hawthorne 
Dave Hummi 3803 Hawthorne 
Haruko Terada 836 DeEtta 
Mark Dziadosz 3819 Hawthorne 

 
George Perl, client of the existing storage facility in Troy, spoke in favor of the proposed 
use and spoke highly of the existing facility.  He confirmed he has no financial interest in 
the proposed development. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 14, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

Discussion followed on: 
• Diagram to portray height of trees to preclude visibility from residential. 
• Shadow effect on residential; accuracy of shadow effect report. 
• Petitioner’s compromise to mitigate effect on residential. 
• Diagram to show impact / context of 5 story building from street side. 
• Submittal requirements: reports, graphics, tree preservation, tree inventory. 
• Sale/purchase agreement on property. 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-038 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for 
the proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, east side of Rochester, south of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, currently zoned GB (General Business) district to the June 11, 
2013 Regular meeting or until such time as the petitioner has supplied necessary 
information to the Planning Department and Planning Consultant with adequate time for 
review. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That the petitioner could request a Special meeting if they 
choose. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Strat 
Absent: Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



From: Kimberley Flaig
To: Planning
Subject: RE: five story mini storage on Rochester.
Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2013 10:38:30 AM

If this  five story monstrosity is approved, it just sets a precedent for 5 stories or more to be built
right behind residential areas.  I still want to know with all the vacant buildings on large pieces or
property that those cannot be utilized first so there are not so many eyesores around this City.  The
five story facility really is more appropriate along the east-west corridors (ie Big Beaver, Maple,
Fourteen, Long Lake, etc and in a more industrialized, commercial setting.
 
If you drive around, you will see so many vacant buildings around that are drawing revenue to the
City, but not sure.  The SYMS bldg. Kmart Corporate (more than adequate and not backed up to
residential area), old Kmart store on Maple, probably empty facilities between Crooks and
Northfield Pkwy (more than adequate and it probably would be used by office staffs in buildings
much more and would fit in as well as along Stephenson.  Many strip mall bldgs. Vacant as well.  I
would like to know why these eyesores could not be renovated and would be more appropriate in
these areas.
 
Also, as a note, we were against the satellite tower on corner of Wattles and Rochester because
residents could see it.  The City informed us it would not be seen.  However it is and with deciduous
trees, in late fall through winter leaves fall, branches are bare, and is very visible just like this
facility will be.  When the sub behind the houses on Judy were built, the developer at the meeting,
informed the City as well as residents would save as many trees as possible.  No inspector came
out to ensure trees were saved other than the Cottonwwods facing way west of the homes, which
could have been cut because they are a nuisance.  I spoke to bulldozer man to ask if an apple tree
that my daughter grew from seed to be saved and he informed me all trees are to be cut down to
make it easy for them to build.  That promise was broken.  Residents were promised would not see
satellite tower, that promise was broken.  Now you are saying building won’t be a problem, it will. 
Have not made good on the aforementioned promises so perceivably the developer informs
residents they will put 50 foot conifers and evergreens along the way, I believe just to get it
approved by the City, may run out of money or find out not enough room for vehicles to enter and
exit facility.  In a few years, they may abandon the building and again this time a horrendous
eyesore.  It just does not fit in this area.
 
I agree with one resident the traffic problem.  The traffic is still horrendous between 3 and 6 and
this will cause more congestion, no matter what is told to the Commission.
 
We pay high taxes in this subdivision and I think with mistakes the Planning Commission has made,
it is time to learn from them, disapprove the plan, clean up these vacant/abandon buildings or
renovate for other uses.  It just does not belong here.   
 
I would like to know when the CB zone for small one-two story bldgs was changed to GB.  As
taxpayers we should have had a right to vote on this issue since it was going to affect residential
areas.
 

mailto:kbdflaig@wowway.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


I don’t think anyone was against his plan, but there are better areas for this monstrosity.
 
Kimberley Flaig
1219 Judy Drive
Troy, MI 48083-5227

From: Kimberley Flaig [mailto:kbdflaig@wowway.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 14, 2013 6:37 PM
To: 'planning@troymi.gov'
Subject: five story mini storage on Rochester.
 
 
The plan was to make Rochester Road like a downtown.  There is no other structure that is five
stories in this vicinity Rochester Road between Big Beaver and Wattles.  This is going to be an
eyesore.  This structure needs to be in an area with the same amount of stories in vacant blds all
over the City of Troy.  Let the developer contact commercial property owners down Stephenson
Road or north of Long Lake east of Northfield Parkway where there are plenty of commercial
buildings that size with no surrounding homes near its vicinity.  Also the Kmart store on Maple and
Livernois would be the perfect location.  Another perfect location is the vacant SYMS bldg..  Give
developer some incentive to use existing vacant buildings to renovate whereby no impact on
residential values.  This is going to look horrendous down Rochester Road…it is going to be a
monstrosity.
 
You don’t see this in downtown Rochester or the renovation of downtown Auburn Hills.  I believe
the City of Troy should work with the Planning Commission of these two cities because they truly
planned out the area and looks very nice.
 
Kimberley Flaig
1219 Judy Drive
Troy MI 48083
248-346-8967



From: Mark Dziadosz
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
Date: Tuesday, May 28, 2013 9:41:20 AM

Brent,
 
This is Mark Dziadosz of 3819 Hawthorne. We spoke last week. You indicated a completed
site plan for the 3846 Rochester Road proposed mini storage should now be available.
Please e-mail me a copy of the proposed site plan. Also, when we spoke I mentioned the
trees in my back yard. I have verified that they are Ash Trees. So the nice row of maples
will not provide me any blockage from the proposed building. I intend to take a picture
from my backyard of the trees and my point of view and send to you. You had mentioned
it would be provided to the planning commision. Thanks for your help.
 
Mark Dziadosz
3819 Hawthorne

mailto:ziado101@hotmail.com
mailto:SavidantB@troymi.gov


From: Mark Dziadosz
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: RE: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
Date: Wednesday, May 29, 2013 8:17:04 AM

2 of the trees are on my property. Approximately 4 are on the subject parcel. One of the
trees that you can see in the picture on my property has grown right next to the fence. It
would be tough to save that tree if a new wall was put in. You can also see the severe lean
of the first tree on the subject parcel. That tree would present a problem while putting a
new wall in also.
 

From: SavidantB@troymi.gov
To: ziado101@hotmail.com
Subject: RE: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
Date: Tue, 28 May 2013 21:03:11 +0000

To confirm: the ash trees are on the subject parcel, correct?

 
I will verify tomorrow.

 

From: Mark Dziadosz [mailto:ziado101@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2013 9:41 AM
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
 
Brent,
 
This is Mark Dziadosz of 3819 Hawthorne. We spoke last week. You indicated a completed
site plan for the 3846 Rochester Road proposed mini storage should now be available.
Please e-mail me a copy of the proposed site plan. Also, when we spoke I mentioned the
trees in my back yard. I have verified that they are Ash Trees. So the nice row of maples
will not provide me any blockage from the proposed building. I intend to take a picture
from my backyard of the trees and my point of view and send to you. You had mentioned
it would be provided to the planning commision. Thanks for your help.
 
Mark Dziadosz
3819 Hawthorne

mailto:ziado101@hotmail.com
mailto:SavidantB@troymi.gov


From: Mark Dziadosz
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: RE: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
Date: Wednesday, May 29, 2013 8:25:44 AM

Here is my view towards Rochester Road. You can see there is a large section where I get
no blockage from Rochester Road. Also the first tree (above the evergreen) is clearly not
healty. This is the tree that has the lean (located on my property). If I lose that tree, I
would see even more of the subject parcel. I would want to be sure there was sufficient
blockage from the subject parcel, from the property owners side.  

From: SavidantB@troymi.gov
To: ziado101@hotmail.com
Subject: RE: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
Date: Tue, 28 May 2013 21:03:11 +0000

To confirm: the ash trees are on the subject parcel, correct?

 
I will verify tomorrow.

 

From: Mark Dziadosz [mailto:ziado101@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2013 9:41 AM
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: 3846 Rochester Road Site Plan
 
Brent,
 
This is Mark Dziadosz of 3819 Hawthorne. We spoke last week. You indicated a completed
site plan for the 3846 Rochester Road proposed mini storage should now be available.
Please e-mail me a copy of the proposed site plan. Also, when we spoke I mentioned the
trees in my back yard. I have verified that they are Ash Trees. So the nice row of maples
will not provide me any blockage from the proposed building. I intend to take a picture
from my backyard of the trees and my point of view and send to you. You had mentioned
it would be provided to the planning commision. Thanks for your help.
 
Mark Dziadosz
3819 Hawthorne

mailto:ziado101@hotmail.com
mailto:SavidantB@troymi.gov












8'  WIDE VAN ACCESS. SPACE

40 FT. (SOUTH)

PARKING REQUIRED:
PARKING PROVIDED: 8 SPACES INC. (1) POSTED

8 SPACES (775 UNITS)

75 FT.PROVIDED -
REQUIRED - 75 FT.

SIDE SETBACKS:
REQUIRED -
PROVIDED -

20 FT.
25 FT. (NORTH)

325 S.F.

466 S.F.

631 S.F.

71 S.F. 71 S.F.

3683 S.F.

PROVIDED - +/- 30 FT.

REAR SETBACK:

2570 S.F.

TAX ID # 20-23-100-067

320 S.F.

1386 S.F.
2617 S.F.

1395 S.F.

LOCATION MAP

DATA:

CURRENT ZONING:
PROPOSED ZONING:

SITE AREA:
BUILDING PAD AREA:
COVERAGE:

LANDSCAPE AREA:
COVERAGE:

FRONT SETBACK:
REQUIRED -

13,210 S.F.

19,424 S.F.

GB    GENERAL BUSINESS

20.0%

29.5%

65,896 S.F.   (1.51 Ac.)

GB    GENERAL BUSINESS

10 FT.

16
5.

80
'

302.50'

72
.0

0'

118.37'

23
7.

80
'

420.87'

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

 R
O

A
D

40
'-0

"
25

'-0
"

64'-0"75'-0"
R.O.W.

20
'-0

"
(S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

)
20

'-0
"

(S
ID

E
 Y

A
R

D
)

10'-0"
(FRONT YARD)

75
' (

1/
2 

R
.O

.W
. C

O
N

C
.)

TAX ID # 20-23-100-061

12
-0

"

12'-0"

24'-0"

30
'-0

"

40'-0"

10
2'

-0
"

202'-0"+/-29'-9"

75'-0"
(REAR YARD)













1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

A

B

C

D

E

F

LOADING LANE

PASSING LANE

LOADING LANE

ENTRYEXIT

10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16

TOTAL 190

5x5
6x5

4
9

7x7
7.5x5
7x5

8x5
10x5
10x7.5

4
5
3

8
16
38

QUAN.SIZE

10x13
10x11

10x10
10x10.5

10x16
18

4

44
2

33

UNIT MIX DATA:

10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x10

10x1010x1010x10 10x10 10x1010x10 10x10

10x1010x1010x1010x10 10x1010x1010x10

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5 10x7.5 10x7.510x7.5 10x7.510x7.5 10x7.5 10x7.5 10x7.5

10x7.510x7.5 10x7.510x7.510x7.510x7.510x7.5

10x13 10x13 10x13 10x13 10x13 10x13 10x1310x13 10x13 10x13 10x1310x13 10x13 10x13 10x13

10x11

10x11

10x11

10x11

8x5 8x5

8x5 8x5

5x6

5x6

5x6

5x8

5x8

5x7

5x7

5x7

10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x16 10x1610x16 10x16

10x10 10x10

5x5

5x5

5x5

5x5

7x7 7x7 7x7 7x7

5x6

5x6

5x6

5x6

5x6

5x6

ELEV. EQ.
STOR. STOR.

ELEV. EQ.

ELEV.ELEV.

STAIR STAIR

STAIR

10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20 10x20

10x2010x20 10x20 10x20

10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10

10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x10 10x1010x10

10x11 10x11 10x11 10x11
JAN.

ELEV.

STOR.

ELEV.
10x5 10x5 10x5 10x5 8x5 8x5

10x10

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5 10x7.5

10x7.5

10x7.5

BREAK
12x10

OFFICE
15x16

SERVER

CONTROL
20 L.F.OFFICE

2080 S.F.

RETAIL

TLT.

14x10
CONF.

10x8

10x8

STAIR

STAIRSTAIR

71TOTAL

10x20

2

3
7
6

1

27
6

19

10x5
8x5

10x10

10x16
10x11

10x7.5
10x8

UNIT MIX DATA:
QUAN.SIZE

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 65 7 8 9 10 11 12

10x5

10x11

10x5

10x11

10x5

10x16

8x5

10x1310x13

10x16

10x5 10x5

10x16

10x10

10x10 10x10

10x10

10x7.5

10x7.5 10x7.5

10x7.5

10x13

10x7.5

10x7.5

10x10

10x10

10x1010x10

10x1610x16

10x5

10x16 10x16

10x510x5

8x5

8x5

10x16

10x5

10x10.5

10x10.5

13

13

B1

D1

6.5x5 2



DEF B AC

543 9 117 8 106 12 1321 CBA D E F

5 4 3911 7810 61213 2 1



 Designer

 Date

 Scale

 Drawing No.

 LBB/JAB

 June 6 2013

 AS NOTED

 #13-14036-V2

1 of 1

 1
-8

0
0
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 S
IT

E
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 V

A
L
U

E
S

 A
T

 G
R

A
D

E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
: 

 G
U

ID
O

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S

 G
A

S
S

E
R

 B
U

S
H

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

 

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.1

2.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.3

1.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.0

1.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.3

0.3

1.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

2.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.7

1.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

2.7

2.3

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.7

1.9

1.9

1.9

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.8

6.2

6.5

6.6

6.6

6.5

6.4

2.7

3.0

3.0

3.1

3.0

3.1

3.1

3.1

3.0

2.8

6.2

6.5

6.5

6.5

6.5

6.4

0.9

1.3

0.8

1.5

1.9

1.4

0.4

1.1

2.0

2.5

2.1

0.9

0.5

1.5

2.0

2.0

1.7

0.6

1.9

2.6

2.0

0.6

2.2

2.8

1.3

0.6

1.9

2.5

1.0

0.6

1.6

2.2

0.9

0.5

1.4

2.4

2.6

1.7

0.5

1.3

2.1

2.2

1.6

0.6

1.4

2.0

2.0

2.4

2.3

0.5

1.4

2.1

2.1

1.8

1.4

0.5

1.2

1.8

2.4

2.2

1.1

0.5

1.2

1.8

2.5

1.5

0.9

0.5

1.2

1.9

2.3

1.8

1.1

0.5

1.4

2.0

2.0

1.5

1.5

0.5

1.3

1.9

2.0

2.0

2.0

0.5

1.2

2.1

2.3

1.5

1.4

0.5

1.3

2.3

2.7

1.6

1.0

0.5

1.6

1.3

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

1.9

1.5

1.6

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.0

0.6

2.1

1.7

2.5

1.5

0.6

0.3

0.9

1.6

1.7

0.5

1.8

2.5

2.0

3.4

2.8

1.4

0.6

0.3

1.6

3.0

2.9

0.4

1.4

1.8

2.5

1.5

0.5

0.3

1.6

3.6

4.5

0.3

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.5

1.6

1.1

0.5

0.4

1.7

3.4

5.1

0.3

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.8

0.9

0.7

0.4

0.4

1.6

3.7

4.4

0.3

0.7

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.7

1.8

2.9

2.8

0.3

0.8

1.5

1.2

0.8

0.7

1.1

1.9

2.8

2.6

2.7

2.9

1.8

1.1

1.3

1.7

1.7

0.4

1.0

1.8

3.0

4.1

4.2

3.0

1.8

1.2

1.0

1.5

2.4

3.7

4.6

4.5

3.6

2.2

1.4

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.7

2.6

3.4

3.8

3.5

2.6

1.8

1.2

1.0

1.4

2.3

3.0

3.3

3.3

3.0

2.2

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

6.7

6.7

6.7

6.7

6.7

6.7

6.7

6.7

0.4

0.10.10.10.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.20.20.20.20.20.10.20.30.30.30.20.10.20.20.20.20.20.10.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

LFW-1LFW-2

LCW-17

LA-18

LA-19

LA-20

LGW-3LEW-4LEW-5LEW-6

LB-7 LB-8

LB-9LB-10

LB-11LB-12

LB-13

LB-14 LB-15

LB-16

SITE LIGHTING VALUES AT GRADE
Scale  1" = 20'

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y MH Orientation

Location

1 LFW 393.4 131.7 20.0 180.0

2 LFW 231.7 131.1 20.0 180.6

3 LGW 404.0 232.4 12.0 0.0

4 LEW 342.1 231.9 12.0 0.0

5 LEW 281.8 232.2 12.0 -0.5

6 LEW 220.2 232.3 12.0 -0.2

7 LB 182.7 221.6 14.0 0.0

8 LB 202.8 221.6 14.0 0.0

9 LB 202.7 201.6 14.0 0.0

10 LB 182.8 201.5 14.0 0.0

11 LB 202.8 181.6 14.0 0.0

12 LB 182.8 181.5 14.0 0.0

13 LB 182.7 161.6 14.0 0.0

14 LB 182.7 141.6 14.0 0.0

15 LB 202.8 141.6 14.0 0.0

16 LB 202.7 161.6 14.0 0.0

17 LCW 312.1 141.3 20.0 180.0

18 LA 423.0 317.0 15.0 180.0

19 LA 478.8 240.9 15.0 270.0

20 LA 480.6 146.8 15.0 270.0

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

Symbol Label Qty File Lumens LLF WattsCatalog Number Description Lamp

LA 3 DSX1_LED_2_
30B700_40K_
SR3_MVOLT_

HS.ies

Absolute 0.89 142.6

LB 10 EVO_SQ_41_2
2_6AR_LD_12

0.ies

Absolute 0.89 33.4

LCW 1 DSX1_LED_2_
30B530_40K_
SR3_MVOLT_

HS.ies

Absolute 0.89 105.6

LEW 3 DSX1_LED_1_
30B530_40K_
SR2_MVOLT.i

es

Absolute 0.89 55.8

LFW 2 DSX1_LED_2_
30B530_40K_
SR2_MVOLT.i

es

Absolute 0.89 105.7

LGW 1 DSX1_LED_1_
30B530_40K_
SR4_MVOLT.i

es

Absolute 0.89 55.5

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 2 30B700/40K
SR3 MVOLT HS

DSX1 LED WITH 2 LIGHT
ENGINES, 700mA
DRIVER, 4000K LEDS,
HOUSE SIDE SHIELDS,
TYPE 3 OPTICS

ONE 142.6-WATT LED,
AIMED DOWN POS.

GOTHAM #EVO
SQ 41/22 6AR LD
120

6" EVO SQUARE LED
DOWNLIGHT, MATTE-
DIFFUSE REFLECTOR,
4100K, 2200 LUMEN

LED

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 2 30B530/40K
SR3 MVOLT HS

DSX1 LED WITH 2 LIGHT
ENGINES, 530mA
DRIVER, 4000K LEDS,
HOUSE SIDE SHIELD,
TYPE 3 OPTICS

ONE 105.6-WATT LED,
AIMED DOWN POS.

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 1 30B530/40K
SR2 MVOLT

DSX1 LED 1 LIGHT
ENGINE, 530mA DRIVER,
4000K LEDS, TYPE 2
OPTICS

ONE 55.8-WATT LED,
AIMED DOWN POS.

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 2 30B530/40K
SR2 MVOLT

DSX1 LED WITH 2 LIGHT
ENGINES, 530mA
DRIVER, 4000K LEDS,
HOUSE SIDE SHIELDS,
TYPE 2 OPTICS

ONE 105.7-WATT LED,
AIMED DOWN POS.

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 1 30B530/40K
SR4 MVOLT

DSX1 LED WITH 1 LIGHT
ENGINE, 530mA DRIVER,
4000K LEDS, TYPE 4
OPTICS

ONE 55.5-WATT LED,
AIMED DOWN POS.

STATISTICS

Description       Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

DRIVE VALUES AT
GRADE

VALUES UNDER CANOPY
AT GRADE

1.5 fc 5.1 fc 0.1 fc 51.0:1 15.0:1

0.1 fc 0.4 fc 0.0 fc N / A N / A

0.7 fc 6.7 fc 0.0 fc N / A N / A

4.5 fc 6.7 fc 1.7 fc 3.9:1 2.6:1

PROPERTY LINE VALUES
AT GRADE

SITE VALUES

NOTES

 1.  SEE MH COLUMN OF LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS FOR MOUNTING HEIGHTS.

 2.  SEE LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE FOR LIGHT LOSS FACTORS.

 3.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT GRADE SURFACE.

 

 THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT 

 TO EXISTING / FUTURE FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS 

 CALCULATED FROM LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

 ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S

 LUMINAIRE MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER

 VARIABLE FIELD CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

  

  THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING 

  ANALYSIS OF LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.    THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT

 IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND

 LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE. 

 

  











  PC 2013.06.11 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 3, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406) – 

Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, South of Big Beaver 
(36895 Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 

 
The petitioner Dorchen/Martin Associates, Inc. submitted the above referenced Special Use 
Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for conversion of the existing 
McDonald’s drive-through from a one-lane to a two-lane stacking drive-through.  Other site 
modifications include removal of the play area and front façade alterations, new 
storage/dumpster enclosures, and reconfiguring the parking lot.   
 
The Planning Commission considered this item at the May 14, 2013 Regular meeting and 
postponed the item to the June 11, 2013 Regular meeting. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from May 14, 2013 Planning Commission meeting 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 406 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 406  McDonalds Restaurant  Sec 25\SU 406 PC Memo 06 11 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406) – 
Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, South of Big Beaver (36895 
Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed McDonald’s Restaurant improvements, West side of Dequindre, South of Big 
Beaver (36895 Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”), 
be (granted, subject to the following conditions): 
 

1.  Resubmit photometrics which comply with Article 13 of the Ordinance.   
 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 406  McDonalds Restaurant  Sec 25\Proposed Resolution SU 406 2013 06 11.doc 



McDonalds Restaurant, 36895 Dequindre

1: 892

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

740149 149Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

4/17/2013



McDonalds Restaurant, 36895 Dequindre

1: 1,189

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

990198 198Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

4/17/2013



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  May 10, 2013 

 May 29, 2013 
 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Frank Z. Martin, Architect 
 
Project Name: McDonald’s Drive-Through Expansion - Dequindre 
 
Plan Date: March 7, 2013 
 
Location: 36895 Dequindre Road (88-20-25-229-006) 
 
Zoning: Neighborhood Node D, Site Type A, Street Type A 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is proposing conversion of the existing McDonald’s drive-through from a one-lane to a 
two-lane stacking drive-through at the existing McDonald’s restaurant located at 36895 Dequindre, just 
south of Big Beaver. 
 
Other site modifications include: removal of the play area and front façade alterations, new 
storage/dumpster enclosure enclosures, reconfiguring/striping of parking lot, internal pedestrian 
sidewalk connection, bike loop, patio dining, drive-through signage, and other various exterior façade 
improvements and interior building renovations. 
 
The site is located within a neighborhood node.  Restaurants with drive-through facilities are listed as a 
special use for site type A. 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

 
Location of Subject Property 
The property is located on the west side of Dequindre Road south Big Beaver. 
 

 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The overall size of the subject property is 1.3 acres. 
 
Current and Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
McDonald’s restaurant. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Neighborhood Node D.  
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  NN D, Neighborhood Node D Atlas Bakery / Advance Auto Parts 
South NN D, Neighborhood Node D Office building 
East City of Sterling Heights Target 
West R-1E, Single-Family Residential Single-Family Residential  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed 
expanded 
drive-thru 
location 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission first considered this matter at the May 14, 2013 meeting.  Please review our 
May 10, 2013 memo for a complete site plan review.  At the May 14, 2013 meeting, the application was 
continued so that the applicant was able to address the following items:  
 
1. Provide additional patio details. 
 
The existing building is approximately 75-feet from the front property line.  The applicant is removing 
the playspace area, which is located on the front of the building, and thus making the building less 
conforming to the form-based 10-foot build-to-line.   Though with any retrofit of the site it will be 
difficult to make the building conforming, the applicant is not permitted to make the building or site less 
conforming without seeking a variance.  To address this issue the applicant has made the patio space a 
more permanent feature.  The patio will be stamped concrete and lined with a decorative 3-foot high 
metal fence and masonry piers.  The proposed patio is closer to the street than the existing building and 
meets ordinance requirements.   
 
2. Install additional open space area and Provide additional landscape area. 
 

 
While, the applicant is deficient in overall open space and landscape area, they have significantly 
increased the site’s total.  To increase the amount of landscaped and open area that have removed 
parking in the northeast corner of the site and replaced with a significant landscape area.  The applicant 
has also increased the total amount of site trees and shrubs.  Because they are greatly improving an 
existing non-conforming situation, the provided open space and landscape area is sufficient.   
 
3. Apply the necessary turning template to verify delivery truck maneuverability. 

 
The applicant has shown a loading space at the northwest corner of the building.  The Engineering 
Department has reviewed the loading and circulation plan and note that the circulation plan is sufficient. 
 
4. Provide additional street trees. 

 
 Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public 
road right-of-way.   

 
 
8 street trees 

 
 
8 street trees 

Compliant 

 
The applicant has provided the necessary street trees.   

  Required: Provided: Compliance 
Open Space 30% 24% includes patio 

area 
Improving existing 

non-conformity 
Site landscaping 20% 16% Improving existing 

non-conformity 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

 
5. Provide rooftop equipment and screening on building elevations. 
 
The rooftop parapet will screen the rooftop equipment.  
 
6. Provide photometric plan.  

 
The applicant has submitted a photometric plan. The photometric plan does not meet the Ordinance 
requirements by exceeding the maximum intensity of twenty (20) footcandles and exceeding the 
maximum permitted level of one (1) footcandle along the north and south property line.   The applicant 
must reduce the footcandle levels for the final site plan submittal.   

 
7. Provide an additional entrance or move the entrance on the front façade to provide a more visual 

entrance on Dequindre and better access to the patio area. 
 
A requirement of the neighborhood node form-based districts is that the primary building entrance is 
identifiable, useable and located in the front façade parallel to the street.  As discussed at the Planning 
Commission meeting, alteration of this front facade provides an opportunity to create a better entrance 
along the front facade and provide direct access to the patio.  Without better access, the patio area will 
get limited use.  As requested, the applicant has added an additional door to the front façade that 
makes the patio area more accessible.  The applicant has addressed our concerns in regards to this 
matter.  
 
8. Provide transparency calculations on elevation drawings to verify compliance. 

 
The applicant has provided the necessary transparency calculations to confirm that the elevations meet 
the Ordinance requirements.  

 
9. Provide additional parking lot screening plantings in compliance with Section 13.02.C. 
 
The applicant proposes to screen the parking area and drive-aisle with viburnum.  These plantings meet 
the Ordinance screening requirements.    
 
SPECIAL USE  
 
In the Neighborhood Node D District, Drive-up and Drive-through facilities are permitted as a special 
use. For any special use, according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the 
request, supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning 
Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the 
request, table action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Use Standards 
 
1. Ingress and egress to drive-through facilities shall be part of the internal circulation of the site and 

integrated with the overall site design.  Clear identification and delineation between the drive-
through facility and the parking lot shall be provided.  Drive-through facilities shall be designed in a 
manner which promotes pedestrian and vehicular safety. 

 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

Site access and circulation will remain mostly the same.  Drive-through facilities are maintained along 
the rear (west) and side (south) portions of the site.  There is a pedestrian path from the building to 
the sidewalk along Dequindre.   
 
2. Single-lane drive-throughs may be located at the side of a building.  Multiple-lane drive-throughs 

shall be located in a manner that will be the least visible from a public thoroughfare.  Canopy design 
shall be compatible with the design of the principal building and incorporate similar materials and 
architectural elements. 

 
The single-lane drive-through is compliant. 
 
3. Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the following standards: 

(a) Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a minimum of 
twelve (10) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 

(b) If proposed, an escape lane shall be a minimum of twelve (12) feet in width to allow other 
vehicles to pass those waiting to be served. 

(c) The number of stacking spaces per service lane shall be provided for the uses listed below.  
When a use is not specifically mentioned, the requirements for off-street stacking space for 
the use with similar needs, as determined at the discretion of the Zoning Administration, 
shall apply. – Fast Food Restaurants require 10 stacking spaces per service lane. 

 
The drive-through aisle width exceeds the minimum requirements.   The width of the drive-aisles can 
be reduced to provide additional landscaped area.   
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed use is an expansion of the existing use which is commercial in nature and fits with the 
existing commercial character of the property and surrounding area.   
 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans.  

 
The subject site is located in the Neighborhood Node future land use category.  This designation is 
intended to be a high-intensity, high-density, compact area that serves as a notable entry-point to the 
community.  Development may include residential, retail, office and service-oriented uses, but should 
be designed to create a very noticeable “gateway” into the City of Troy with its complex, high-density, 
mixed-use character.   The applicant has provided a development that is consistent with the Master 
Plan.   
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 
minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

  
The alteration to the existing drive-through expansion should have minimal impact on traffic.   
 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
The proposed use should not cause additional impact on other public services, such as police or 
utilities, beyond what would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  
 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards.  

 
Deficiencies are noted.     
 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of operation; 

either specifically or typically associated with the use.  
 
The proposed use is permissible in the proposed location. 
 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 
Vehicular circulation and parking areas are sufficient.  
    
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 
N/A. 
 
4. Hours of operation.  
 
We assume due to the nature of the proposed use, this will be a 24-hour, 7 day per week use. 
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light.  
 
We do not anticipate any additional impact after initial construction in this regard. 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The applicant is making significant site and architectural improvements.  We recommend that the 
Planning Commission approve the Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use, provided that the applicant 
addresses the following as part of their final site plan submittal:  
 

1.  Resubmit photometrics which comply with Article 13 of the Ordinance.   
 
 
Sincerely,  

      
#225-02-1314 
 
Cc:  Frank Z. Martin, Architect (fmartin@dorchenmartin) 
  Iggy Pipitone, (iggy.pipitone@us.mcd.com) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MAY 14, 2013 
   
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

(File Number SU 406) – Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of 
Dequindre, South of Big Beaver (36895 Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned 
NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the significant changes required for the proposed 
conversion of the existing McDonald’s drive-through, as relates to the newly 
adopted Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carlisle said after discussing the outstanding site 
plan items with the petitioner, it was mutually agreed to postpone the item to 
provide time to resubmit a revised site plan. 
 
The petitioner and project architect, Frank Martin, was present.  Mr. Martin said 
most of the outstanding items as noted in the Planning Consultant’s report would 
be addressed with the resubmission.  He noted of most concern is the 
requirement for the additional door at the front of the building, and shared the 
corporate restaurant standard building layout.  Mr. Martin addressed the drive-
through business, permanent outdoor seating with decorative fencing, 
landscaping and lighting. 
 
There was discussion on: 

• Photometric plan; reduced lighting during evening hours. 
• Front entry door on the east side. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-039 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for 
the proposed McDonald’s Restaurant improvements, west side of Dequindre, 
south of Big Beaver (36895 Dequindre), Section 25, currently Zoned NN “B” 
(Neighborhood Node “B”), be postponed to the June 11, 2013 Regular meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 
Dorchen/Martin Associates, Inc. 
Architects/Planners 
 
29895 Greenfield Road  Suite 107 
Southfield, Michigan  48076  
248.557.1062  
Fax: 248.557.1231 
Cell: 248.224.3714 
E-mail: fmartin@dorchenmartin.com 
http://www.dorchenmartin.com/ 

 May 17, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Brent Savidant, AICP, PCP 
Planning Director 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084 
 
Re: McDonald’s Drive-Thru Expansion and Exterior Renovations 
 36895 Dequindre Road 

D/MA File No:  100025M 
Sidwell:  88-20-25-229-006 

 
Dear Brent: 
 
Please let this letter serve as our response to the Review Letter dated May 2, 2013 as prepared by Carlisle 
Wortman Associates, Inc. for Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval.  We will respond to the 
eleven items under RECOMMENDATION as identified on Page 10 of their review letter. 
 

1. Provide additional patio details. 
 

We will be providing additional details and elevations to reflect decorative brick piers and 
aluminum decorative fencing on the east side of the patio with accent returns on the north and 
south.  Landscape will be appropriate to the fence design to provide transparency. 

 
2. Install additional open space area. 

 
The review identifies 12% as open space while 30% is required.  There was not an open space 
calculation provided on our drawings and the 12% shown on the landscape plan was for the 
landscape area only.  In an effort to increase open area and landscape area, we have eliminated 
5 parking spaces at the northeast corner of the parking area and 1 space at the south side of the 
building just east of the drive-thru present window.  With these modifications, the open space 
will become 24% and the landscape will become 16%.  A revised landscape plan will be 
prepared and submitted. 
 

3. Apply the necessary turning template to verify delivery truck maneuverability. 
 

The loading area has been tweaked to improve maneuverability and a truck turning template 
will be applied to our site plan for submission.  Truck deliveries are three times per week for an 
average 45 minutes stay per visit.   
 
 

mailto:fmartin@dorchenmartin.com
http://www.dorchenmartin.com/


Mr. Brent Savidant, AICP, PCP 
McDonald’s Drive-Thru Expansion – Dequindre 
May 17, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 

4. Provide additional street trees. 
 

The additional 3 street trees will be provided. 
 

5. Provide additional landscape area, 
 

See Item #2 above. 
 

6. Correct elevations and site plan for storage/trash enclosure location. 
 

The location and orientation of the Storage/Trash Corral is as shown on the site plan.  Sheet C1a 
is a detail sheet of the Storage/Trash Corral with a note to the Contractor that the Corral is to 
be constructed in reverse.   
 

7. Provide rooftop equipment and screening on building elevations. 
 
Existing rooftop equipment is screened by and existing parapet as provided by the mansard 
roof.  We will be eliminating the mansard but replacing it with a vertical wall element that will 
maintain the existing mansard height so as to continue to screen the rooftop equipment.  We will 
add a clarification note to the elevation drawing sheets. 
 

8. Provide a photometric plan. 
 

The existing lights are proposed to remain and a photometric plan is being prepared. 
 

9. Provide an additional entrance or move the entrance on the front façade to provide a more visual 
entrance on Dequindre and better access to the patio area. 

 
a. Understanding that this particular building is existing and was constructed and 

approved under the prior zoning ordinance, we understand some of the challenges of 
attempting to meet the new Neighborhood Node D, Site Type A, Street Type A relative to 
the new ordinance.  It has been suggested that an outdoor patio be provided with a 
permanent presence, brick pier and decorative fencing, so as to create a more visual 
entrance/presence on Dequindre.  In addition, an aluminum and glass entry door has 
been suggested to better access the patio area.  We have also eliminated 5 parking spaces 
at the northeast of the site so that we are closer to the 50% requirement regarding 
parking in the side yard at the building line.  After much discussion with McDonald’s 
and the Planning Commission, we have agreed to install a new aluminum and glass entry 
at the front of the building to gain access to the patio.  This door placement is the result 
of form and function.  Architecturally, the location balances the Dequindre elevation and 
provides excellent access to the Patio.  Functionally, the door is positioned adjacent to 
the Customer Service area and Self-Serve Beverage Bar for easy access to the patio. 

 
10. Provide transparency calculations on elevation drawings to verify compliance. 

 
Transparency calculation will be provided. 
 

11. Provide additional parking lot screening plantings in compliance with Section 13.02.C. 
 



Mr. Brent Savidant, AICP, PCP 
McDonald’s Drive-Thru Expansion – Dequindre 
May 17, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 

Parking lot screening plantings will be provided in compliance with Section 13.02.C. 
 
If I can be of any further assistance in this matter, do not hesitate to contact me at my office. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Frank Z. Martin, AIA, NCARB 
Dorchen/Martin Associates, Inc. 
 
FZM/ 
 
PC: Iggy Pipitone, McDonald's Corporation USA, LLC 
 
 
 





















  PC 2013.06.11 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 5, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

(File Number SU 408) – Proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone, West side 
of John R, South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned 
IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
The petitioner Tabak Stone Co. submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval and 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for the addition of an outdoor storage area to Modern 
Kitchen/Bath - Tabak Stone showroom building.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 408 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 408  Modern Kitchen Bath 2701 John R\SU 408 PC Memo 06 11 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 408) – 
Proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone, West side of John R, South of Big Beaver 
(2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) 
District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone outdoor storage, West side of John R, South 
of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial 
and Business) District be (granted, subject to the following conditions): 
 

1. Submit lighting photometrics and fixtures. 
 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 408  Modern Kitchen Bath 2701 John R\Proposed Resolution SU 408 2013 06 11.doc 



2701-2703 John R, Modern Kitchen/Bath

1: 1,005

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

840168 168Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/7/2013

Legend:



2701-2703 John R, Modern Kitchen/Bath

1: 1,005

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

840168 168Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/7/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 
 
 

 Date:  May 31, 2013 
 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: E & E Tabak Properties, LLC  
 
Project Name: Modern Kitchen & Bath 
 
Plan Date: May 28, 2013 
 
Location: 2703 John R Rd. – South of Big Beaver, north of Maple.  West side 

of John R.    
 
Zoning: IB, Integrated Industrial Business District 
 
Action Requested: Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a special land use application which includes a site plan demonstrating both 
existing and proposed site conditions related to the addition of an outdoor storage area at the existing 
Modern Kitchen & Bath.   
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize a portion of their existing parking area as an outdoor storage area.  
The site is located at 2703 John R Rd and is zoned IB, Integrated Industrial Business District.  Outdoor 
storage facilities are listed as a special use in the IB district.  The applicant indicates that they propose to 
store unfinished granite stock not to exceed 6 feet in height.   
 
 
 



Modern Kitchen & Bath 
May 31, 2013 

2 

Figure 1. – Aerial Photograph 

 
 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on John R. south of Lincoln St. between Big Beaver and Maple Rd. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 1.0 acres 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to modify a portion of the existing western and northern parking lot for outdoor 
storage.    
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently maintains a 13,288 s.f. manufacturing building.   
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is zoned IB, Integrated Industrial Business District. 
 
 
 
 

Outdoor Storage 
Yard 



Modern Kitchen & Bath 
May 31, 2013 

3 

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels and Current Land Use:  
 
 Zoning  Use 
North PUD, Planned Unit Development Residential  
South  IB, Integrated Industrial Business District Warehousing/Industrial  
East MF, Multi-Family Residential Multi-Family Residential 
West PUD, Planned Unit Development Parking 

IB, Integrated Industrial Business District Outdoor Sports Facilities 
 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The proposed site improvements will require the removal of (2) existing Cottonwood trees and (1) 
existing Elm Tree.  There are no other impacts on the natural environment. 
  
Items to be Addressed: None 
 

BUILDING LOCATION / SITE ARRANGEMENT / CIRCULATION 
 

The existing building is located at the center of the site, with the parking in the rear (west) and side 
(south).  The proposed outdoor storage area will be located within a portion along the western parking 
area and northern property line and will be enclosed by a proposed pre-cast concrete screen wall 8’ in 
height.  There are two proposed gates; one located on the south west corner of building and one along 
the northern section.   
 
According to the Fire Department, a Knox Box will need to be put on the gate(s) in order to access the 
outdoor storage area and rear of building in case of emergency.  The applicant will work with the Fire 
Department to determine location.   
 
In order to ensure proper circulation and ensure that the rear of building is accessible, the applicant has 
indicated the limits of outside storage on the current site plan.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Section 4.15.C establishes the dimensional requirements for the IB District.  The layout of the site, save 
the western parking area will not be impacted by the addition of the outdoor storage area.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 

 

 



Modern Kitchen & Bath 
May 31, 2013 

4 

 

PARKING 
 
Parking: 
 
The elimination of parking spaces to accommodate the outdoor storage area reduces the site’s available 
parking spaces.  However, the current site plan exceeds the minimum number of parking spaces 
required.  Parking spaces meet the requirements of 9.5 feet stall width, 19 feet stall length and 24 feet 
aisle width.   
 

 Required Provided Compliance 

Manufacturing = 1 space 
per 550 s.f.  

 
 

13,288 / 550 = 24 spaces 
 
 

27 spaces Compliant 

 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
SITE ACCESS  
 
Vehicular access: 
 
The site will be accessed via the existing driveway from John R. Rd.  No modifications regarding site 
access are proposed. 
  
Pedestrian access:  
 
There exists a public sidewalk along John R. Rd. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None  
 
LIGHTING 
 
The applicant notes that they will replace the existing lighting to comply with section 13.05 of the 
Zoning Ordinance.   
  
Items to be Addressed: Submit lighting photometrics and fixtures as part of the final site plan approval.   
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscaping plan has not been provided.  As part of the install of the 8’ high wall, the applicant will 
remove three trees.  No additional landscaping is required.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 



Modern Kitchen & Bath 
May 31, 2013 

5 

SPECIAL USE  
 
In the IB District, outdoor storage facilities are permitted as a special use. For any special use, according 
to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary materials either 
in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing 
established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on the request, or 
grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.08 provides specific use requirements for outdoor storage facilities.  Specifically, outdoor 
storage facilities are required to be an accessory to the primary use of the property, and shall not be 
located in any front yard.  Further, outdoor storage facilities are required to be enclosed by an opaque 
fence up to eight (8) feet in height and/or landscape screening meeting the standards set forth in 
Section 13.02 B. 
 
The site plan provided demonstrates that the outdoor storage area will be located in the northwest 
corner of the property within the current northern property line and western parking area.  The areas 
along the north and west property lines are proposed to be screened with a pre-cast concrete screen 
wall 8’ in height.  The applicant meets the Section 6.08 of the ordinance.  
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses. The proposed outdoor storage area is in close proximity 
to residential uses.  The applicant is screening the outdoor storage and bringing the area into 
lighting compliance in order to mitigate impact upon adjacent properties.  The adjacent 
residential use will not be impacted. 

 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans. The Master Plan designates the subject site and the surrounding area as 21st 
Century Industrial.  The 21st Century Industrial future land use classification encourages a variety 
of industrial uses; specifically, light industrial uses with no outdoor storage or external nuisances 
are especially encouraged.  However, because this is an existing use, and provided the applicant 
can make the noted site plan requirements, the proposed use can be compatible with the City of 
Troy Master Plan.   

 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 



Modern Kitchen & Bath 
May 31, 2013 

6 

shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion. The 
addition of an outdoor storage area within the existing development site would not increase 
vehicular trips.  

 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden. The addition of an outdoor 
storage area within the existing development site would not increase impact on public services.   

 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards.   New site lighting shall comply with 13.05 of the 
Zoning Ordinance.   

 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 

operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use. See above.  We believe that with 
conditions, the proposed use may be permissible. 

 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas. General layout plan was provided on site plan. 
 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas. The special requirements (Section 6.08) related to outdoor 

storage facilities have been met.   
 
4. Hours of operation. The addition of the outdoor storage area will not impact the existing businesses 

current hours of operation. 
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light. We do not anticipate 

any additional impact in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: Address Ordinance compliance issues if site lighting is modified.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We support the proposed development.  We recommend that the Planning Commission grant the 
Special Use and preliminary site plan approval provided that the applicant submit the following for final 
site plan approval:  
 

1. Submit lighting photometrics and fixtures  
 
 

 



Modern Kitchen & Bath 
May 31, 2013 

7 

 

 
 
 
 
225-02-1319 


















	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	May 28, 2013 Special/Study Meeting 

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	March 12 Planning Commission Minutes Excerpt 
	May 14 Planning Commission Minutes Excerpt 
	Report from Housing and Zoning Inspector 
	Site Photographs (pgs 17-27) 
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan
	Site Survey

	6. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Commission March 26 Minutes Excerpt
	Zoning Board of Appeals April 16 Minutes Excerpt
	Planning Commission May 14 Minutes Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	7. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Planning Commission May 14 Minutes Excerpt
	Public Comment (pgs 69-76 ) 
	Site Plan, Rendering, Massing Views 

	8. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2) 
	Planning Consultant Report
	Planning Commission May 14 Minutes Excerpt 
	Petitioner Correspondence
	Site Plan

	9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 408)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	10. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS



